
 

        Town of Charlotte  1 
DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD MEETING 2 

Meeting Conducted at Town Hall and via Teleconference  3 
June 11, 2025 4 

  5 
DRAFT – subject to approval by the Development Review Board 6 

Development Review Board: Charles Russell (Chair), Gerald Bouchard (Vice Chair), Alexa Lewis, 7 
Brandon Tieso, Doug Paton.    8 

Staff: Aaron Brown, Zoning Administrator.    9 

OTHERS: Paul Plante, Frank Tenney, Clark Hinsdale, Adam Hausmann, Sonja Janjic, Alex Lalli, 10 
Dianne Leary, James LaBerge, Pete Demick.  11 
 12 
Posted Agenda:  13 
7:00 PM  Call to Order; changes to agenda (if any)  14 
7:02 PM  Public Comment (not pertaining to pending applications)  15 
7:05 PM  Review & Approve Meeting Minutes: draft DRB Minutes, May 28, 2025  16 
7:10 PM  DRB 25‐70‐PRDA Hinsdale‐Hausmann ‐ public hearing ‐ Subdivision/PRD Amendment 17 

to transfer 2.77 acres with a multi-unit house from 3768 Spear St. to 985 Bingham Brook 18 
Rd.  19 

7:35 PM  DRB‐25‐76‐CU/SP Owl Feet Daycare ‐ public hearing - Conditional Use and Site Plan 20 
Review for Daycare Facility serving 10 or more children at 1968 Prindle Road  21 

8:15 PM  DRB‐25‐057‐PRD – Leary‐LaBerge – public hearing continued ‐ Proposed Two-Lot 22 
Planned Residential Development at 4670 Greenbush Road  23 

8:45 PM  Review & Approve Draft Decisions: DRB 25-061-SDA Harmeling-Cooper; DRB 25-81-24 
SK Yergeau  25 

9:00 PM  Adjourn 26 
 27 
Call to Order/ changes to agenda: None.  28 
 29 
Public Comment:  30 
 Clark Hinsdale commented on the resignation of Zoning Administrator, Aaron Brown, and noted 31 
that it was a loss for Charlotte.  32 
 33 
Review & Approve Meeting Minutes: draft DRB Minutes, May 28, 2025:  34 

MOTION by Alexa Lewis; seconded by Gerald Bouchard, to approve the DRB meeting 35 
minutes for May 28, 2025, as amended. VOTE: 5 ayes, motion carried.  36 
 37 
DRB 25‐70‐PRDA Hinsdale‐Hausmann ‐ public hearing ‐ Subdivision/PRD Amendment to 38 
transfer 2.77 acres with a multi-unit house from 3768 Spear St. to 985 Bingham Brook Rd.:  39 
 Russell asked members if they had any ex parte communications or conflicts of interest to 40 
disclose; none noted. Russell swore in Hinsdale and Adam Hausmann.  41 
 Hinsdale distributed maps and explained how he had waived wastewater setbacks to enable the 42 
abutting property owner to add 10 feet to their septic system in an exchange for the relinquishing of a 43 
replacement easement on his lot. Russell questioned if it was a private setback that was waived. 44 
Hinsdale confirmed that it was a private agreement, and the easement has been quit-claimed back to 45 
Hinsdale.   46 



page 2 Development Review Board 06/11/2025 
 
  Lewis said that mapping does not show side setbacks on the Hausmann property. Specifically, 47 
side setbacks to the sugar house. Hinsdale responded that the side setback to the sugar house is a 48 
requested waiver. Aaron Brown confirmed that setbacks can be modified within a Planned Residential 49 
Development (PRD) amendment.  50 
 Lewis then questioned whether easements for the replacement mound for the rental property are 51 
proposed or recorded. Hinsdale responded that the easements would be recorded once approved. It is not 52 
legal to record an easement prior to approval.  53 
 Lewis asked if building envelopes need to be established with new boundaries. Brown reminded 54 
Lewis that it was determined during sketch plan review that no new lots are being created and therefore 55 
no building envelopes are required.   56 

MOTION by Brandon Tieso; seconded by Alexa Lewis, to close DRB 25‐70‐PRDA 57 
Hinsdale‐Hausmann. VOTE: 5 ayes, motion carried.  58 
 59 
DRB‐25‐76‐CU/SP Owl Feet Daycare ‐ public hearing - Conditional Use and Site Plan Review for 60 
Daycare Facility serving 10 or more children at 1968 Prindle Road:  61 
 Russell swore in Sonja Janjic and Alex Lalli. Russell asked members if they had any ex parte 62 
communications or conflicts of interest to disclose; none noted. Russell noted that a site visit was 63 
completed earlier in the day.  64 

Janjic said she is seeking approval to convert an existing garage/outbuilding at her residence into 65 
a daycare facility for 3–5-year-old children with the intent to open on September 2nd.  66 

 Lewis asked if the converted garage would be heated and open year-round. Janjic answered that 67 
the proposed facility would be heated and open September to June.  68 

Lewis questioned where the proposed seven parking spots would be located. Janjic pointed to 69 
where she intended parking spaces to be located and said that some spots will require excavation. 70 
Russell said the intended parking spaces need to be shown on a map for approval. Janjic asked how 71 
many parking spots are required. Through discussion and reference to the staff report, it was determined 72 
that three parking spaces are required per 10 students in addition to the two spaces needed for the house. 73 
Lewis said that Janjic mentioned seven spaces in her application. Russell added that the minimum 74 
parking requirements in the regulation can sometimes be inadequate, and advised that is best to ensure 75 
plenty of parking.  76 

Doug Paton asked if the site plan should show the full driveway. To that point, Lewis asked 77 
Janjic if she knew when the last survey was completed. Janjic did not know. Brown pointed out a survey 78 
that was completed in 2004. 79 

Russell referred to the staff report’s discussion of a phasing schedule. Specifically, Brown wrote 80 
that the board may wish to acknowledge that the full build-out will take more than two years because 81 
DRB approvals must typically need to be completed within two years. The staff report suggests that the 82 
DRB allow for future buildings or additions to the garage to be reviewed and approved administratively, 83 
rather than have Janjic return to the board. The board would need to establish thresholds for the zoning 84 
administrator to review in consideration of any permit application. Paton asked how much space is 85 
required under state childcare facility regulations. Janjic responded 35 square feet are required per child. 86 
Thus, the building can accommodate 10 children in its current state. Lewis asked about staffing 87 
requirements. Janjic said that with 10 children she is not required to have any additional staffing but 88 
plans to have one full-time employee. If the program is expanded to 17 children, this would require two 89 
employees, but Janjic would likely have three.    90 

Russell asked about continuing the hearing to June 25th to allow the applicant time to develop a 91 
full site plan. When considering a full-site plan to include an expansion, Lewis asked Brown if he knew 92 
how many parking spaces would be required. Brown responded three spaces per 10 children, so 93 
potentially six. The regulations do not contemplate different increments. Due to the applicant’s time 94 
constraints, Russell asked Development Review Board members if they were comfortable having Janjic 95 



page 3 Development Review Board 06/11/2025 
 
superimpose the parking areas on the most recent survey for the lot, which is permissible per Land Use 96 
Regulations. Russell noted that a professional site plan could then be a condition of approval.  97 

Paton asked about driveway width. Russell provided driveway standards including the 98 
requirement for a 14’ width. Brown spoke about his comment within the staff report for allowable 99 
modifications to driveway standards. Gerald Bouchard recommended that the applicant review their 100 
driveway easement agreement as this may need to be amended. Russell added that the applicant should 101 
also get an ability-to-serve letter from the Fire Department.  102 

Janjic confirmed the timeline going forward and what would be needed in the site plan regarding 103 
the potential expansion.  104 

MOTION by Alexa Lewis; seconded by Gerald Bouchard, to continue DRB‐25‐76‐CU/SP 105 
Owl Feet Daycare, to June 25, 2025, at 7:05pm. VOTE: 5 ayes, motion carried.  106 
 107 
DRB‐25‐057‐PRD – Leary‐LaBerge – public hearing continued ‐ Proposed Two-Lot Planned 108 
Residential Development at 4670 Greenbush Road:  109 

Russell asked if members had any ex parte communications or conflicts of interest to disclose; 110 
none noted. Russell swore in Dianne Leary, James LaBerge, and Pete Demick.  111 

Leary said that she was able to locate the acreage needed for the subdivision. Subsequent review 112 
of updated mapping. Russell noted that setbacks can be modified within a PRD. Bouchard said he’d like 113 
the 4.3 acres of open space and the 0.7 acres of the Transferable Development Rights (TDR) area 114 
depicted on the map. Russell said that 50% open space is required for the lot as a whole. Subsequent 115 
discussion of why open space is required. This case involves a non-contiguous PRD. Lewis added that 116 
an open space agreement is made with the Selectboard.  117 
 A list of outstanding items was compiled for the applicants to provide their engineer which 118 
included delineation of open space, building envelopes, and a density table on P-2 that shows the 119 
remaining development potential of the sending parcel. Paton asked about the process of establishing an 120 
open space agreement with the Selectboard. Brown said that the Town Administrator, Nate Bareham, 121 
would facilitate scheduling. Russell added that there are templates available. Brown noted that the 122 
Charlotte Conservation Commission made recommendations for open space.  123 
 Russell suggested continuing the hearing to allow the applicants to delineate 1-acre building 124 
envelopes and intended open space. Russell noted that Charlotte Map Viewer is a tool that could be 125 
used.  126 

MOTION by Alexa Lewis; seconded by Brandon Tieso, to continue DRB‐25‐057‐PRD – 127 
Leary‐LaBerge to June 25, 2025, at 7:40pm. VOTE: 5 ayes, motion carried.  128 
 129 
Deliberation:  130 
 131 
DRB 25‐70‐PRDA Hinsdale‐Hausmann:  132 
 Lewis suggested three conditions for the decision which included: any further development on 133 
the Hinsdale lot would require a building envelope, depict side setbacks, and proposed easements. Lewis 134 
then questioned if removal of the boundary line should also be included in the decision. Russell 135 
confirmed.  136 
 137 
Review & Approve Draft Decisions:  138 
 139 
DRB 25-061-SDA Harmeling-Cooper: 140 
 Russell asked for clarification that the proposed building envelope was approved within an Act 141 
250 permit amendment.  142 
 Bouchard questioned acreage for the former Bruska and Waller lots. Acreage reviewed and 143 
confirmed.  144 



page 4 Development Review Board 06/11/2025 
 
 Russell suggested capturing that the previous Planning Commission approved a 50-foot right of 145 
way on the Bruska lot. That right of way is being converted to land. The Bruska lot is a preexisting 146 
nonconformity because it lacks 300 feet of frontage. Therefore, adding some frontage is reducing the 147 
amount of nonconformity. 148 

MOTION by Gerald Bouchard; seconded by Doug Paton, to approve the draft decision for 149 
DRB 25-061-SDA Harmeling-Cooper, as amended. VOTE: 5 ayes, motion carried.  150 
 151 
  152 
DRB 25-81-SK Yergeau:  153 
 Paton questioned the purpose of denying the applicant to maintain the 1-bedroom apartment that 154 
was previously commercial space, even though it was converted to a new residence without the proper 155 
approval. Paton noted that allowing the apartment to continue seems more aligned with the Town’s 156 
housing goals and Town Plan. Lewis said her concern is setting a bad precedent, as well as the inherent 157 
lack of density. Tieso added that there are no regulations that would allow for what the applicant 158 
requested. Russell asked if the loss of commercial use after six months of no commercial activity would 159 
automatically convert the former shop to a residence. Brown said the town attorney advised that while 160 
the space reverted to residential after the discontinuance, it did not automatically grant approval of a 161 
new unit. The owner could have added that space to one of the existing approved apartments without 162 
any issue. Discussion of adaptive reuse of the commercial space as another option.  163 
 Lewis asked that the waiver of stormwater control and landscape screening be changed to 164 
indicate that none has been proposed.   165 

MOTION by Brandon Tieso; seconded by Alexa Lewis, to approve the sketch letter for 166 
DRB 25-81-SK Yergeau, as amended. VOTE: 5 ayes, motion carried.  167 
 168 

MOTION by Brandon Tieso; seconded by Alexa Lewis, to adjourn the meeting. VOTE: 5 169 
ayes, motion carried. The meeting was adjourned at 9:32pm.  170 
 171 
Minutes respectfully submitted: 172 
Nicole Burnell, Recording Secretary with edits by Aaron Brown 173 


